
 

                         

 

 

 

                             

 

 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 

 

REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 

 

 

July 19, 2023 

 

AGENDA PACKET 

 

11



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
AGENDA JULY 19, 2023 

 
MEETING AGENDA – ADDITIONS/DELETIONS/CHANGES – Pages 3-4 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
A. APPROVAL OF THE REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES JUNE 28, 2023 – 

Pages 5-15 
B. APPROVAL OF THE SITE PLAN FOR  510 THIRD AVE – Pages 16-86 
C. REAPPOINTMENT OF BOARD MEMBERS – Pages 87-88 

 
PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS/AWARDS 
A. PRESENTATION OF CITIZEN OF THE YEAR– Page 89 
 
FINANCE/BUDGET REPORT – Pages 90-107 
 
DEPARTMENT AND BOARD/COMMITTEE REPORTS 
A. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT – Pages 108 
B. BUILDING DEPARTMENT – Pages 109-114 
C. CODE ENFORCEMENT – Pages 115-117 
D. FIRE DEPARTMENT – Pages 118-121 
E. POLICE DEPARTMENT – Pages 122-133 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
A. CONSIDERATION OF ADDING A DESIGNATED BIKE LANE ALONG RIVERSIDE DRIVE IN 

CONJUNCTION WITH THE RE-PAVEMENT PROJECT – Page 134 
B. CONSIDERATION OF MOLD CLEANUP IN THE COMMUNITY CENTER – Page 135 
C. CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST TO AMEND THE BINDING LOT AGREEMENT FOR DJON’S 

AND GIVE CONSENT TO THE TOWN ATTORNEY TO LEGALLY AMEND THE AGREEMENT – 
Pages 136-145 

D. CONSIDERATION OF CREATING A VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK – Pages 146-147 
 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
A. TOWN MANAGER – 148 
 
TASK LIST – Pages 149-152 
 

2



Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 
JULY 19, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
AGENDA 

 
 

The Town Commission will conduct a Regular Town Commission Meeting 
on Wednesday, July 19, 2023, in the Community Center 

to address the items below 
 

Commission Members: 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Vice Mayor Joyce D. Barton  
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 
Commissioner Marivi Walker 
 
Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 
Town Clerk Amber Brown 

 
 
Notice: Commission discussion and possible action may occur during any Commissioner Meeting. The following 
sections of the Agenda are always subject to such discussion and possible action without further motion by the 
Commission: Changes to the Agenda, Public Hearings, Old Business, and New Business. 

The public is advised that members of the Town Commission may be in attendance and participate in proceedings 
of the board. Attorney General Opinions (AGO) AGO 91-95, AGO 98-14, AGO 2000-68. 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC 
THAT: In order to appeal any decision made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript of the 
proceedings. It will be your responsibility to ensure such a record is made. Such person must provide a method 
for recording the proceedings verbatim as the Town does not do so. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing 
special accommodations for this meeting shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the Office of the Town 
Clerk at (321) 724-5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

 

1. Call to Order – Led by Mayor Hoover 
 

2. Roll Call  
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
 

4. Meeting Agenda – Additions/Deletions/Changes 

33



5. Consent Agenda 
A. Approval of the Regular Town Commission meeting minutes June 28, 2023 
B. Approval of the site plan for 510 Third Ace – new home 
C. Reappointment of Board Members 

1. Reappointment of Charles Cain to the Board of Adjustment 
2. Reappointment of Daniel Hansen to the Historical Preservation and Awareness 

Board (Ryckman House) 
 

6. Proclamations/Presentations/Awards 
A. Presentation of Citizen of the Year  
 

7. Finance/Budget Report 
 

8. Department and Board/Committee Reports 
A. Public Works Department 
B. Building Department 
C. Code Enforcement 
D. Fire Department 
E. Police Department 
F. Town Clerk 
 

9. Public Comment (Non-Agenda Items) 
After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their name 
and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare their 
comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to address the 
Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business, not on the Agenda.   
 

10. Public Hearings/Special Orders 
 

11. Unfinished Business 
 

12. New Business 
A. Consideration of adding a designated bike lane along Riverside Drive in conjunction 

with the re-pavement project. 
B. Consideration of mold cleanup in the Community Center. 
C. Consideration of a request to amend the Binding Lot Agreement for Djon’s and give 

consent to the Town Attorney to legally amend the agreement.  
D. Consideration of creating a Veterans Memorial Park. 

 

13. Administrative Reports  
A. Town Attorney 
B. Town Manager 

 

14. Commission Reports 
 

15. Task List 
 

16. Public Comment 
 

17. Adjournment 

44



Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 
June 28, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 
 

 

MINUTES 

 

Commission Members: 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton 

Commissioner Sherri Quarrie 

Commissioner Corey Runte 

Commissioner Marivi Walker 

 

Staff Members: 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Town Attorney Cliff Repperger  

Town Clerk Amber Brown 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

55



1. Call to Order 

 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover called the meeting to order at 6:01 p.m. 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

Town Clerk Amber Brown conducted a roll call 

 

Commission Members Present  Staff Members Present 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover     Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton    Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 

Commissioner Sherri Quarrie    Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 

Commissioner Marivi Walker   Building Official Robert Bitgood 

Commissioner Corey Runte   Public Works Director Tom Davis 

       Police Chief Melanie Griswold 

Commission Members Absent  Town Clerk Amber Brown 

           

3. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 

 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover led the Pledge of Allegiance  

 
4. Meeting Agenda – Additions/Deletions/Changes 

 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie made a motion to approve the agenda; 
Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 
5. Consent Agenda   

A. Approval of the Regular Town Commission meeting minutes May 17, 2023 
B. Approval of the site plan for 504 Fourth Ave  – accessory structure 
C. Approval of the site plan for 306 Avenue B – new home 
D. Reappointment of a Board Member to the Environmental Advisory Board 

1. Kelli Hunsucker 
 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton moved to accept the Consent Agenda as presented; 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 
 

6. Proclamations/Presentations/Awards 
A. Presentation of a proclamation recognizing May 20th through May 26th, 2023 as 

National Safe Boating Week  
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover presented the proclamation recognizing May 20th through 
May 26th, 2023 as National Safe Boating Week. 

 
7. Finance/Budget Report 

 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie asked to start including last year’s parking numbers. 

 

66



Vice Mayor Joyce Barton made a motion to accept the finance report as 
presented; Commissioner Corey Runte seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 
8. Department and Board/Committee Reports 

A. Public Works Department 
 
Public Works Director Tom Davis provided pictures and spoke about the boardwalk 
that is being built in Ocean Park, the pier repairs being finished, and the upgrades 
in Ryckman Park. 
 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton spoke about adding trash cans to the boardwalk. 

 
B. Building Department 

 
Building Official Robert Bitgood spoke about the building department slowing 
down slightly now that it is summer.  

 
C. Code Enforcement 

 
Building Official Robert Bitgood spoke about recently hiring a new code 
enforcement officer. 
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about a vacation rental on Colony that 
notified the Town that they will be switching to long-term rentals. 

 
  Roger Newell 
  506 Colony St 
 

Roger Newell spoke about trying to address the safety concerns about that 
property.  Wait and see if it does become a long-term rental. 

 
D. Fire Department 

 
No additions 

 
E. Police Department 

 
Police Chief Melanie Griswold spoke about Founder’s Day going well for law 
enforcement.  Next year parking on Avenues A and B will need to be addressed.   
 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton asked about the speed bumps versus the rumble stripes.  
 
Police Chief Melanie Griswold spoke about the speed bumps working well, but they 
will need to be extended, so people don’t drive around them. 

 
F. Town Clerk 

 
No additions 

 
 

77



9. Public Comment (Non-Agenda Items) 
After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their name 
and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare their 
comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to address the 
Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business, not on the Agenda.   
 

10. Public Hearings/Special Orders 
 

11. Unfinished Business 
A. Review the boat ramp concept plans 

 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about adding a small area to temporarily tie your boat 
while you park your vehicle. 
 
Commissioner Corey Runte spoke about the north side seawall is not in line with the 
rest.  Other than the stormwater drain if there is no other reason he proposed 
bringing the seawall out to be in line with the others.  
 
 Roger Newell 
 506 Colony 
 
Roger Newell asked if the boat ramp is open twenty-four seven and if there are any 
provisions for low lighting that would not interfere with the neighbors. 
 
Commissioner Corey Runte spoke about these plans would not include details about 
lighting, but that is a good point to consider. 
 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie asked about using solar lights. 
 
 Allison Stephens 
 1508 Pine St 
 
Allison Stephens spoke about not having any issues in the past four years with her 
new seawall.  What is the dock size?  What are the setbacks for this area?  There is 
a gazebo inches off the property line.  If residents have to follow the rules then so 
should the Town. 
 
Commissioner Corey Runte spoke about this being only conceptual plans. 
 

12. New Business 
A. Consideration of the fiscal year 2023-2024 Fire Rescue Dispatch Services Interlocal 

Agreement in the amount of $5,600.00. 
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about the updated agreement with 
Indialantic for Fire Dispatch services has a slight increase of $200.00.   
 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton made a motion to approve the fiscal year 2023-2024 Fire 
Rescue Dispatch Services Interlocal Agreement at the cost of $5,600.00 annually; 
Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 

88



B. Consideration of the Chief of Police Job Description 
 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about this job description being the one that has been 
used in the past, but there was no formal approval from the Town Commission. 

 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton made a motion to approve the Chief of Police job 
description; Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 
 

C. Consideration on limiting plan review submissions to Planning & Zoning Board 
 

Building Official Robert Bitgood spoke about having to bring almost anything 
exterior alteration-wise to the Planning and Zoning Board.  He proposed limiting 
what is brought to Planning & Zoning to commercial, multi-family, new single-family 
construction and exterior remodels exceeding 50% of the home value.  Things such 
as gazebos and covered porches would be approved by the Building Official.  This 
would shorten the wait time to get a permit, reduce staff time, and streamline the 
process.  
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about this would modify the current policy to be in line 
with our ordinance.   
 
Commissioner Corey Runte spoke about over the years more and more has been sent 
to Planning and Zoning above what our ordinance states.  Planning and Zoning is 
meant to be a special meeting for large projects that need multiple eyes on the plans. 
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about previous building officials were 
contracted, so they might not have had the same drive and outlook on things. 
 
 Roger Newell 
 506 Colony 
 
Roger Newell asked about the proposed law requiring a three-day turnaround time 
for building permits. 
 
Building Official Robert Bitgood spoke about the proposed law did not pass, but the 
Building Department turns around permits usually within a couple of days which is 
fast. 
 
 Paul McLaughlin  
 412 Second Ave 
 
Paul McLaughlin asked what the Planning and Zoning Board thinks about this.  
They had to have seen this, so what do they think? 
 
Building Official Robert Bitgood spoke about as residents they have the option of 
seeing this, but he has not received any feedback from them.     
 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton made a motion to approve the Building Official signing 
off on all site plans except for commercial, multi-family, new signal family 
construction, and exterior remodels exceeding 50% of the home value; 

99



Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 
 

D. Consideration of a Memorandum of Understanding for posting legal notices on 
Brevard County’s publicly accessible website 

 

Town Clerk Amber Brown spoke about House Bill 7049 which allows the county and 
municipal governments to publish certain legal notices on the county’s publically 
accessible website.  This MOU would be between the Town of Melbourne Beach and 
Brevard County to open the option of allowing the Town to post legal notices on the 
County website rather than pay Florida Today.  There are a lot of requirements that 
go along with it, but this would just open us up to the option.  Brevard County will 
charge a flat rate of $125.00 per notice, whereas, Florida Today was an average of 
$200.00 to $600.00.  Since the ads would be posted on a website the way we submit 
them is the way they would be posted, so we would not have to worry about any 
format issues like in the newspaper.   
 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton asked about what notices can be put online. 
 
Town Clerk Amber Brown spoke about some of the Town ordinances stating the 
notice will be published in a newspaper of general circulation, so that would need to 
be updated to allow for online publication.   
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about the extremely strict requirements 
for posting the trim notices and almost every year there has been an issue with it, so 
this would be a way to ensure the notice was done correctly rather than waiting for 
the newspaper to come.  This year we would post in both places to slowly transition 
to online postings. 
 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie asked for clarification on what notices would be 
posted where. 
 
Town Clerk Amber Brown spoke about first starting with meeting notices for the 
Board of Adjustments and Planning and Zoning.  We would have to post in the 
newspaper first stating legal notices will be published on the County’s website.  
Right now because it is so new for Trim notices she recommended putting them in 
both to test it out and see how it goes.  This would allow our residents to transition 
and get used to the change.  In the future, if it works out we could transition 
everything that is legally allowed to the website.  We are still working on what 
notices are legally allowed to be published on the website. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about approving the memorandum of understanding 
does not change the fact that parts of our ordinances still require the Town to post 
in the newspaper.  In order to eliminate that in the future the Town would need to 
go through the process to eliminate that requirement.  This would just provide an 
additional option.     
 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton made a motion to approve the Memorandum of 
Understanding for posting legal notices on Brevard County’s publicly accessible 
website; Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 
 

1010



E. Consideration of the 2023-2024 School Resource Officer’s Memorandum of 
Understanding 

 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about this being the 6th iteration of the SRO 
Memorandum of Understanding.  The students and teachers at Gemini love our 
SROs.   
 
Police Chief Melanie Griswold spoke about Officer Sullivan going to school in July to 
be the SRO next school year. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover asked if the amount increased. 
 
Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr spoke about it slightly increasing. 
 

Commissioner Corey Runte made a motion to approve the 2023-2024 School 
Resource Officer Memorandum of Understanding; Commissioner Marivi Walker 
seconded; Motion carried 5-0. 

 
F. Consideration of suggested changes to the Land Development Code, Code of 

Ordinances 
 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about the background of this item and asked to go 
through each item one at a time and discuss it. 
 
Town manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about this is to allow our businesses to do 
business.  This would allow the businesses to be closer to the road and have parking 
in the back to add a buffer between the business and the residents behind the 
business.  This would also allow street fronts along the sidewalk.  Right now these 
items are to see if the Commission is interested in allowing the specific items.  It is 
not to go into all the details and requirements related to the item. There are 
additional items that have not been included in this yet, but if there are any items the 
Commission would like to add they can do that.   
 
Commissioner Corey Runte spoke about receiving positive resident feedback.   
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover read each item. 
 
1. Remove the parking requirements for businesses.  Require 5 space minimum, 1 

handicap, 1 low-speed vehicle, and 1 bike rack to promote a walkable, low-speed 
vehicle community. – no issues 
 

2. Reduce the width of parking spaces from 10’ to 9’. – no issues 
 

3. Approved outdoor seating, with 3 open sides and roof attachment.  The roof 
attachment for outdoor seating will not require setback compliance. – no issues 
 

4. Allow restaurants as a permitted use 6B, 7C, and 8B. – no issues 
 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about the lengthy process a restaurant needs to go 
through to be permitted.  This would make it easier to get restaurants in Town.  

1111



  
Commissioner Corey Runte spoke about banks not being inclined to loan 
money for properties with special exception requirements.   
 

5. Remove setback requirements for 6B, 7C, and 8B and use the Florida Building 
Code setback requirements. – no issues 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover asked for clarification on this item. 
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about this does not mean there won’t be 
setbacks.  The setbacks depend on the type of business and the type of building 
and what is required for the fire department and building department.  There 
could be additional requirements such as shrubbery. 
 
Commissioner Corey Runte spoke about the setbacks would default to Building 
Code standards. 
 

6. Allow microbrewery/micro-distillery by special exception in zone 6B, 7C, and 8B. 
– no issues 
 

7. Allow non-academic instruction (ballet, karate, pottery class, art class, etc.) in 6B, 
7C, and 8B. – no issues  
 

8. Allow personal services, professional offices, studios, clinics, health clubs, and 
fitness studios in 6B and 7C.  – include 8B  
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover asked why 8B is not included. 

 
9. Allow duplexes and townhouses in 8B – strike duplexes but leave townhouses 

 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie spoke about previous Commissions were trying to 
keep the historical structures on the west part of Ocean Ave.    
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about duplexes already being allowed, 
so that part can be taken out. 

 
10. In zone 6B, increase the maximum height from 35 to 36 feet to allow for 12-foot 

ceilings. – no issues 
    
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about unifying 6B, 7C, and 8B.  He does not see a 
strong reason to segregate those zones.   
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about the intent for 8B was to be a 
historical area. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about having from Pine to the river be a separate 
zone, but the rest of the business district the same. 
 
Commissioner Corey Runte spoke about keeping this block the way it currently 
is, but not making it more stringent.  

1212



 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about a new law that was passed to 
promote affordable rental properties.  The problem is in any commercial or 
multifamily zone in Town they can come in and do not have to meet any criteria 
or go to Planning and Zoning or the Town Commission and have three stories.  
There is nothing the Town can do about it.   
 
Commissioner Corey Runte spoke about this being the Live Local Act and the 
general summary is local governments must approve multifamily and mixed-use 
residential developments in any area zoned for commercial, industrial, or mixed-
use of any type as long as at least 40% of the units will be affordable for at least 
30 years.  
 
 Roger Newell  
 506 Colony 
  
Roger Newell asked if someone could buy the vacant property on Colony and 
turn it into anything they want.  He asked for clarification on zone 8B.  Short-
term rentals are a blight on our community and we need to figure out how to 
control them and protect the integrity of the Town.  We need stronger 
representation up in Tallahassee.   
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about the residential zones (First Ave and south and 
Avenue A and north) not being touched, so they will maintain the current status.   
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about duplexes are already allowed in 
zone 8B.   
 
 Paul McLaughlin 
 412 Second Ave 
  
Paul McLaughlin spoke about the code for 8B needs to be strengthened not 
loosened.  At one point it was mentioned to combine all three of the business 
districts. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about duplexes in 8B are already allowed, and the 
Commission does want to see the historic part of Ocean Ave maintained.  
Through the approval process, specific language will be drawn up and 
presented to the Commission for approval. 
  
 Billy and Allison Stephens 
 1508 Pine St 
 
Billy and Allison Stephens spoke about loving the idea of looking at zoning.  
Likes the idea of keeping this part of Ocean Ave historical and the other part for 
restaurants and businesses.  They own the vacant lot on Ocean Ave and were 
going to work with a couple of other businesses near it to beautify Ocean Ave.      
 
 

13. Administrative Reports  

1313



A. Town Attorney 
 

No additions 
 

B. Town Manager 
 

Met with Frank Abbate, Brevard County Manager, about the issue with funding for 
the lifeguards.   
 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger spoke about the Commission may want to watch 
the County Commission meeting from 5/23/2023 where the County Commission 
discusses funding the lifeguards. 
 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie spoke about the issues go beyond just lifeguards.  An 
example is the shooting that happened at Spessard Holland. The County is not 
supporting the beach at all even from a police standpoint.  The Town should not 
need to take on more and more costs for protection.  The County needs to step up 
and protect the people.  

 

14. Commission Reports 
 

15. Task List 
 

Updated:  

Lifeguards – waiting on the County Commission – Corey Runte asked to look 

into the cost of having our own lifeguard program – September 

Street Ends for Kayak Launch – Closed 

Parking Stickers – Waiting on the mockup, concept is smaller, circle, one color 

background, with the year on it – look into why they turn brown – July 

Boat Ramp Improvements – look into grant opportunities – August 

 

16. Public Comment 
 
 Allison and Billy Stephens 
 1508 Pine St 
 
Allison and Billy Stephens spoke about wanting to keep it a Town boat ramp.  Keep 
the mentality of it being a kayak launch to everyone outside of the Town.  Could make 
it a neighborhood boat ramp so anyone using it would have to register with the Town 
first.  If we got grant money what does that open us up to?  If grant money opens us 
up to something we don’t want then people might want to raise the money instead of 
losing something.  Regarding the concept plans, instead of building a structure, build 
beaches with trees with some chairs.  Keep it simple and small Town and protect the 
neighbor’s privacy.  The number one thing people use that area for is the sunset.  
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about each grant having different requirements. 
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about a grant that was used to repair the pier 
the only requirement was to install a small plaque. 

1414



 
 Roger Newell 
 506 Colony 
 
Roger Newell asked if there is any way to get creative and play with the numbers to 
not have to pay the County for lifeguards. Has anyone done any data on the increase 
in population from here to the inlet?    

 

17. Adjournment 
 

Commission Sherri Quarrie moved to adjourn; Commissioner Corey Runte 

seconded, Motion carried 5-0. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:29 p.m.   

             

       ATTEST: 

 

______________________  _________________________ 

Wyatt Hoover, Mayor    Amber Brown, Town Clerk  

1515



1616



1717



1818



1919



2020



2121



2222



2323



2424



2525



2626



2727



2828



2929



3030



3131



3232



3333



3434



3535



3636



3737



3838



3939



4040



4141



4242



4343



4444



4545



4646



4747



4848



4949



5050



5151



5252



5353



5454



5555



5656



5757



5858



5959



6060



6161



6262



6363



6464



6565



6666



6767



6868



6969



7070



7171



7272



7373



7474



7575



7676



7777



7878



7979



8080



8181



8282



8383



8484



8585



8686



8787



1. Name: __________________________________  Home Phone: _______________________

2. Home Address: ______________________________________________________________

3. Mobile Phone: ____________________ E-mail address: ______________________________

4. Business Name: ________________________ Business Phone: _______________________

5. Resume or Education & Experience: ______________________________________________

(Use additional sheets if necessary or submit resume) 

6. Date of birth: ______________________ (to verify voter registration)
 (optional) 

7. Are you a qualified elector of the town?  YES  NO

8. Are you a resident of the town?  YES  NO

9. Do you reside in the town for at least ten (10) months of each calendar year?    YES  NO

10. Do you hold a public office?  YES  NO

11. Do you currently serve on a Town board?  YES  NO

If yes, which board? ___________________________________

12. Please check the board(s) you are interested in serving on:

□ Audit Committee

□ Board of Adjustment

□ Civil Service Board

□ Code Enforcement Board

□ Environmental Advisory Board

□ History Center Board

□ History Preservation and Awareness

□ Parks Board

□ Planning and Zoning Board

□ Police Pension Fund Board of Trustees

13. Why do you think you are qualified to serve on this board? _________________________

________________________________________________________________________

14. Would you consider serving on another board other than the one(s) you have selected above?
 YES  NO

Note: Persons appointed to certain town boards must file a financial disclosure form with the Brevard 
County Supervisor of Elections and Florida Commission on Ethics. If you have any questions, please 
call the Town Clerk’s office at 724-5860. 

Signature: ______________________________________ Date: 6-30-2023_____________ 

TOWN BOARD VOLUNTEER APPLICATION 
     Town of Melbourne Beach 

507 Ocean Avenue 

Melbourne Beach, Florida 32951 

Phone: (321) 724-5860     Fax:  (321) 984-8994

8888

townclerk
Rectangle



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   Presentation   

Meeting Date:  July 19, 2023 

From:   Amber Brown, Town Clerk   

RE:   Citizen of the Year 

 

Background Information: 

Presentation of Citizen of the Year 

 

Recommendation:   

 

 

Attachments:   

 

8989



  
 

1 
 

Town of Melbourne Beach 

Finance Department 

 

Memo 
To: Mayor, Vice Mayor and Commissioners 

From: Jennifer Kerr, Finance Manager 

Date: July 13, 2023 

Re: June Fiscal Year 2023   

We are in the ninth month of our fiscal year 2023. The target expenditure rate for June is 75.00%. All departments are managing 

their expenditures well at this time. All budget items highlighted in green are over the target rate but within the anticipated 

spending of that budget line. Items highlighted in yellow are being monitored, and items highlighted in red are over expended. 

Some budget lines are fully expended early in the budget year while other lines like salaries and health insurance are paid on a 

monthly basis. The total General Fund expenditure rate, year to date is 75.75%. The Departmental expenditure rate breakdown 

is as follows:   

 

Legislative:  51.15% 

  Executive:  64.71% 

  Finance:  82.35%  

  Legal:   65.55% 

  Comp & Plan:    43.44% 

  General Services: 76.77% 

  Law Enforcement: 71.02% 

  Fire:   47.94% 

  Code:   53.26% 

  Public Works:  75.13% 

  Grounds Keeping: 85.97% 

  Parks:   96.69%       

 

Discussion Items:  

 

The Town received Parking Revenue for June FY2023 in the amount of $17,853.10. Parking revenue for June FY2022 

was $17,717.47. A Fiscal Year (FY) comparison is attached.  

 

We are currently in FY24 budget preparations.  

 

 

 

9090



Fund: 001 GENERAL FUND
Account Category: Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used

001-00-311.00.00 AD VALOREM TAXES 2,418,002.00 0.00 2,352.20 99.90
001-00-312.41.00 LOCAL OPTION COUNTY GAS TAX 93,000.00 0.00 705.02 99.24
001-00-314.10.00 UTILITY SERVICES TAX FPL 248,000.00 0.00 62,645.29 74.74
001-00-314.30.00 UTILITY SERVICES TAX WATER 52,500.00 0.00 16,251.68 69.04
001-00-314.40.00 UTILITY SERVICES TAX GAS 0.00 0.00 (52.63) 100.00
001-00-314.40.10 UTILTIY GAS TAX AMERIGAS 7,700.00 0.00 1,818.49 76.38
001-00-314.40.20 UTILITY GAS TAX SUBURBAN 1,000.00 0.00 (33.21) 103.32
001-00-314.40.30 UTILTIY GAS TAX FERRELL 2,800.00 0.00 982.81 64.90
001-00-314.40.40 UTILITY GAS TAX SAM'S GAS 0.00 0.00 (80.02) 100.00
001-00-315.00.00 COMMUNICATIONS SERVICE TAX 137,000.00 0.00 53,844.83 60.70
001-00-316.00.00 OCCP. LIC 16,000.00 0.00 1,218.12 92.39
001-00-323.10.00 FRANCHISE FEES FPL 190,000.00 0.00 68,185.73 64.11
001-00-323.70.00 FRANCHISE FEES SOLID WASTE 40,000.00 0.00 5,224.57 86.94
001-00-323.70.10 SOLID WASTE COMMERCIAL 13,500.00 0.00 2,106.73 84.39
001-00-329.20.00 BONFIRE PERMIT 900.00 0.00 900.00 0.00
001-00-329.50.00 LOW SPEED VEHICLE REGISTRATION 0.00 0.00 (900.00) 100.00
001-00-329.50.10 LOW SPEED VEHICLE PERMIT FEE 0.00 0.00 (600.00) 100.00
001-00-334.40.00 FMIT SAFETY GRANT 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 0.00
001-00-335.12.00 STATE REVENUE SHARING PROCEEDS 87,000.00 0.00 14,765.46 83.03
001-00-335.15.00 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSES 4,600.00 0.00 186.30 95.95
001-00-335.18.00 HALF CENT SALES TAX LOCAL GOV 192,000.00 0.00 49,701.37 74.11
001-00-342.20.00 SAFETY INSPECT FEE VAC RENTAL 800.00 0.00 (165.00) 120.63
001-00-342.20.10 SAFETY RENEWAL-VAC RENTALS 800.00 0.00 (400.00) 150.00
001-00-345.10.00 VAC RENTAL APP FEE-INITITAL 5,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 60.00
001-00-345.10.10 VAC RENEWAL FEE - RENTALS 2,500.00 0.00 (650.00) 126.00
001-00-361.10.00 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 4,000.00 0.00 (12,857.05) 421.43
001-00-369.00.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 2,500.00 0.00 (727.98) 129.12
001-00-369.00.49 INSURANCE RECOVERY 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00

92.22

REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES FOR THE TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH

BALANCE AS OF 06/30/2023
9191



Department: 13 FINANCE Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used

001-13-369.00.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.00 0.00 (35.00) 100.00
100.00

Department: 21 LAW ENFORCEMENT
001-21-312.52.00 INSURANCE PREMIUM TAX 45,500.00 0.00 45,500.00 0.00
001-21-337.20.00 SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 65,000.00 0.00 16,250.00 75.00
001-21-337.25.01 STATE LE COMPUTER GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
001-21-347.90.01 SPECIAL EVENTS 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
001-21-351.00.00 FINES - LAW ENFORCEMENT 7,500.00 0.00 3,051.26 59.32
001-21-351.13.00 PARKING TICKETS 600.00 0.00 173.00 71.17
001-21-351.13.10 ACCIDENT REPORT 100.00 0.00 (128.33) 228.33
001-21-369.00.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.00 0.00 (64.00) 100.00

44.67

Department: 22 FIRE CONTROL
001-22-322.30.00 FIRE PROTECTIVE SERVICES 5,000.00 0.00 3,205.00 35.90
001-22-369.00.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.00
001-22-369.55.10 SHARED TRAINING 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00

27.62

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 29 CODE ENFORCEMENT
001-29-359.00.00 OTHER FINES AND FORFEITURES 800.00 0.00 (19,206.25) 2,500.78

2,500.78

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 72 PARKS & RECREATION
001-72-347.41.00 FOUNDER'S DAY 6,500.00 0.00 (705.00) 110.85
001-72-347.50.00 FACILITY RENTALS 8,000.00 0.00 2,245.00 71.94

89.38

Overall Revenue Rate: 91.06

9292



Account Category: Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 00 
001-00-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 0.00 0.00 (225,921.00) 100.00

100.00

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 11 LEGISLATIVE
001-11-500.11.00 EXECUTIVE SALARIES 16,200.00 0.00 4,050.09 75.00
001-11-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 56,710.00 0.00 16,358.72 71.15
001-11-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 4,338.00 0.00 146.60 96.62
001-11-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 6,754.00 0.00 1,950.65 71.12
001-11-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 5,940.00 0.00 989.50 83.34
001-11-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 68.00 0.00 11.70 82.79
001-11-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 181.00 0.00 125.09 30.89
001-11-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,902.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-11-510.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 3,640.00 0.00 1,407.53 61.33
001-11-510.40.10 TRAVEL & MEETINGS - STAFF 2,788.00 0.00 867.34 68.89
001-11-510.47.00 PRINTING 5,015.00 0.00 3,027.23 39.64
001-11-510.48.00 PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES 800.00 0.00 316.02 60.50
001-11-510.48.40 LEGAL NOTICES 10,000.00 0.00 8,431.94 15.68
001-11-510.49.50 ELECTION EXPENSE 2,500.00 0.00 1,909.81 23.61
001-11-510.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 875.00 0.00 240.00 72.57
001-11-510.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 4,410.00 0.00 3,910.00 11.34
001-11-510.64.00 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 2,000.00 0.00 825.67 58.72
001-11-510.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 50,000.00 0.00 43,812.50 12.38
001-11-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 7,421.00 0.00 782.26 89.46

51.15

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 12 EXECUTIVE
001-12-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 143,243.00 0.00 48,087.53 66.43
001-12-500.14.00 SALARIES OVERTIME 0.00 0.00 (80.57) 100.00
001-12-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 10,958.00 0.00 2,804.87 74.40
001-12-500.22.01 RETIREMENT - ICMA 17,060.00 0.00 8,054.31 52.79

9393



001-12-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 4,436.00 0.00 2,071.30 53.31
001-12-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 25,561.00 0.00 10,389.18 59.36
001-12-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 749.00 0.00 164.61 78.02
001-12-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 458.00 0.00 320.32 30.06
001-12-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.00 0.00 (853.00) 100.00
001-12-510.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 1,320.00 0.00 617.75 53.20
001-12-510.52.50 GAS & OIL 2,400.00 0.00 600.00 75.00
001-12-510.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 3,595.00 0.00 1,651.00 54.08
001-12-510.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 450.00 0.00 355.00 21.11

64.71

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 13 FINANCE
001-13-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 109,053.00 0.00 29,665.30 72.80
001-13-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 8,343.00 0.00 2,000.18 76.03
001-13-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 12,988.00 0.00 3,592.37 72.34
001-13-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 14,824.00 0.00 1,175.22 92.07
001-13-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 136.00 0.00 23.40 82.79
001-13-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 349.00 0.00 236.49 32.24
001-13-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 5,300.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-13-510.32.00 AUDITING SERVICES 26,600.00 0.00 (4,100.00) 115.41
001-13-510.32.90 BANKING FEES 6,900.00 0.00 (820.44) 111.89
001-13-510.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 1,200.00 0.00 214.75 82.10
001-13-510.47.00 PRINTING 180.00 0.00 180.00 0.00
001-13-510.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 60.00 0.00 60.00 0.00
001-13-510.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 800.00 0.00 686.00 14.25
001-13-764.10.00 Filing Fee Clerk-Parking Ticke 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.00

82.35

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 14 LEGAL COUNSEL
001-14-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 96,000.00 0.00 28,227.50 70.60
001-14-510.31.01 CODE ENFORCEMENT ATTORNEY 10,000.00 0.00 8,285.00 17.15

65.55

9494



Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 15 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
001-15-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 20,000.00 0.00 11,311.15 43.44

43.44

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 16 FEMA - HURRICANE DA
001-16-500.14.16 HURRICANE PAY 0.00 0.00 (1,890.00) 100.00
001-16-510.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 (542.20) 100.00
001-16-530.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 (325.55) 100.00
001-16-530.46.35 PIER MAINTENANCE 0.00 0.00 (7,150.00) 100.00
001-16-530.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 0.00 0.00 (2,376.56) 100.00

100.00

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 19 GENERAL SERVICES
001-19-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 2,618.00 0.00 2,618.00 0.00
001-19-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4,020.00 0.00 882.50 78.05
001-19-510.31.11 SECURITY 3,308.00 0.00 3,308.00 0.00
001-19-510.34.10 JANITORIAL SERVICES 17,000.00 0.00 4,410.00 74.06
001-19-510.35.00 PRE-EMPLOYMENT EXP 300.00 0.00 (41.09) 113.70
001-19-510.41.00 TELEPHONE 18,240.00 0.00 180.18 99.01
001-19-510.41.10 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 43,056.00 0.00 10,080.99 76.59
001-19-510.43.00 STREET LIGHTS 47,000.00 0.00 14,019.45 70.17
001-19-510.43.10 ELECTRICITY 38,500.00 0.00 19,028.43 50.58
001-19-510.43.20 WATER & SEWER 3,520.00 0.00 813.32 76.89
001-19-510.43.50 WASTE TAX SERVICE 3,300.00 0.00 1,031.09 68.75
001-19-510.45.00 GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 85,728.00 0.00 (995.00) 101.16
001-19-510.45.01 FLOOD INSURANCE 3,751.00 0.00 (1,422.00) 137.91
001-19-510.45.02 PROPERTY INSURANCE 69,960.00 0.00 6,002.00 91.42
001-19-510.45.03 AUTO INSURANCE 8,172.00 0.00 3.00 99.96
001-19-510.46.10 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 4,232.00 0.00 1,877.95 55.63
001-19-510.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 25,000.00 0.00 6,611.00 73.56
001-19-510.46.36 PEST CONTROL 3,000.00 0.00 757.68 74.74

9595



001-19-510.47.00 PRINTING 500.00 0.00 (50.13) 110.03
001-19-510.49.90 ADOPT AN AREA 1,500.00 0.00 839.21 44.05
001-19-510.49.98 CONTINGENCY 25,000.00 0.00 19,573.00 21.71
001-19-510.49.99 MISCELLANEOUS 300.00 0.00 248.40 17.20
001-19-510.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 11,000.00 0.00 4,975.67 54.77
001-19-510.51.10 POSTAGE 1,400.00 0.00 261.93 81.29
001-19-510.52.10 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 3,500.00 0.00 (624.23) 117.84
001-19-510.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 325.00 0.00 (70.03) 121.55
001-19-510.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 39,916.00 0.00 38,884.33 2.58
001-19-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 21,286.00 0.00 6,300.97 70.40
001-19-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 115,000.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

76.77

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 21 LAW ENFORCEMENT
001-21-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 627,879.00 0.00 150,513.42 76.03
001-21-500.12.50 HOLIDAY PAY 20,000.00 0.00 (64.13) 100.32
001-21-500.14.00 SALARIES OVERTIME 15,000.00 0.00 1,097.57 92.68
001-21-500.14.16 HURRICANE PAY 18,000.00 0.00 5,992.94 66.71
001-21-500.15.00 EDUCATION INCENTIVE PAY 6,800.00 0.00 707.50 89.60
001-21-500.15.01 FIRST RESPONDER 8,000.00 0.00 3,450.00 56.88
001-21-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 52,087.00 0.00 12,150.38 76.67
001-21-500.22.02 POLICE PENSION 206,912.00 0.00 36,912.00 82.16
001-21-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 5,217.00 0.00 1,422.27 72.74
001-21-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 210,119.00 0.00 138,227.79 34.21
001-21-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 2,700.00 0.00 642.66 76.20
001-21-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-21-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 16,853.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-21-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 2,179.00 0.00 1,354.16 37.85
001-21-520.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 725.00 0.00 15.39 97.88
001-21-520.34.40 DISPATCHING SERVICES 17,785.00 0.00 (533.55) 103.00
001-21-520.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 3,324.00 0.00 2,285.03 31.26
001-21-520.41.10 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 5,388.00 0.00 3,479.68 35.42
001-21-520.46.10 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 5,500.00 0.00 3,325.68 39.53

9696



001-21-520.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 5,500.00 0.00 670.97 87.80
001-21-520.46.16 RADAR CALIBRATION 700.00 0.00 382.00 45.43
001-21-520.46.20 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 17,000.00 0.00 (4,359.31) 125.64
001-21-520.48.00 PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
001-21-520.48.50 CRIME PREVENTION 2,100.00 0.00 618.74 70.54
001-21-520.49.99 MISCELLANEOUS 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00
001-21-520.51.10 POSTAGE 150.00 0.00 66.38 55.75
001-21-520.52.00 UNIFORMS 7,000.00 0.00 (1,115.56) 115.94
001-21-520.52.05 PROTECTIVE GEAR 8,328.00 0.00 6,587.04 20.90
001-21-520.52.50 GAS & OIL 40,000.00 0.00 25,554.02 36.11
001-21-520.52.70 MEDICAL 500.00 0.00 (113.47) 122.69
001-21-520.52.90 OPERATING SUPPLIES 4,320.00 0.00 746.08 82.73
001-21-520.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 935.00 0.00 100.60 89.24
001-21-520.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 6,400.00 0.00 5,150.00 19.53
001-21-520.64.01 Capital Outlay 18,400.00 0.00 (6,033.70) 132.79
001-21-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 13,837.00 0.00 3,823.44 72.37
001-21-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 13,479.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

71.02

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 22 FIRE CONTROL
001-22-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 88,036.00 0.00 24,539.80 72.13
001-22-500.14.50 STIPEND PAYROLL 38,689.00 0.00 18,524.47 52.12
001-22-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 9,695.00 0.00 2,945.99 69.61
001-22-500.22.01 RETIREMENT - ICMA 7,513.00 0.00 1,953.81 73.99
001-22-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 2,973.00 0.00 1,035.96 65.15
001-22-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 25,626.00 0.00 6,516.91 74.57
001-22-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 136.00 0.00 29.03 78.65
001-22-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 207.00 0.00 (415.00) 300.48
001-22-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 16,750.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-22-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 282.00 0.00 185.53 34.21
001-22-520.34.40 DISPATCHING SERVICES 5,400.00 0.00 1,500.00 72.22
001-22-520.35.00 PRE-EMPLOYMENT EXPENSE 2,060.00 0.00 1,623.00 21.21
001-22-520.36.00 ANNUAL PHYSICALS 4,375.00 0.00 2,475.00 43.43

9797



001-22-520.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 750.00 0.00 597.00 20.40
001-22-520.41.10 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 1,644.00 0.00 225.84 86.26
001-22-520.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 9,152.00 0.00 1,632.61 82.16
001-22-520.46.20 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 26,100.00 5,770.34 10,049.33 39.39
001-22-520.46.30 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 1,000.00 0.00 719.76 28.02
001-22-520.48.55 FIRE PREVENTION 4,600.00 0.00 1,950.00 57.61
001-22-520.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 400.00 0.00 46.18 88.46
001-22-520.52.00 UNIFORMS 7,135.00 0.00 6,545.10 8.27
001-22-520.52.02 S.C.B.A. 1,975.00 0.00 435.14 77.97
001-22-520.52.05 PROTECTIVE GEAR 2,925.00 0.00 2,415.19 17.43
001-22-520.52.10 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 1,000.00 0.00 133.31 86.67
001-22-520.52.20 TOOLS & HARDWARE 2,000.00 0.00 1,533.91 23.30
001-22-520.52.50 GAS & OIL 6,600.00 0.00 3,587.77 45.64
001-22-520.52.70 MEDICAL 1,400.00 0.00 403.60 71.17
001-22-520.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 435.00 0.00 (11.00) 102.53
001-22-520.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 7,525.00 0.00 6,253.00 16.90
001-22-520.54.12 TRAINING MATERIALS 1,960.00 0.00 1,393.64 28.90
001-22-520.64.01 Capital Outlay 82,369.00 30,000.00 82,369.00 0.00
001-22-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 13,304.00 0.00 1,309.06 90.16
001-22-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 15,277.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

47.94

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 29 CODE ENFORCEMENT
001-29-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 14,898.00 0.00 6,971.63 53.20
001-29-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 1,140.00 0.00 496.08 56.48
001-29-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 1,774.00 0.00 1,345.04 24.18
001-29-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 21.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-29-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 230.00 0.00 127.00 44.78
001-29-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 48.00 0.00 36.98 22.96
001-29-520.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.00 0.00 (1,000.00) 100.00
001-29-520.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 35.00 0.00 35.00 0.00
001-29-520.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.00
001-29-520.46.20 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.00

9898



001-29-520.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 125.00 0.00 86.35 30.92
001-29-520.51.10 POSTAGE 350.00 0.00 247.64 29.25
001-29-520.51.20 RECORDING COSTS 120.00 0.00 120.00 0.00
001-29-520.52.00 UNIFORMS 150.00 0.00 137.32 8.45
001-29-520.52.50 GAS & OIL 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.00
001-29-520.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 75.00 0.00 75.00 0.00

53.26

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 41 PUBLIC WORKS
001-41-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 207,196.00 0.00 65,610.67 68.33
001-41-500.14.00 SALARIES OVERTIME 0.00 0.00 (3,006.46) 100.00
001-41-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 15,850.00 0.00 3,960.35 75.01
001-41-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 24,677.00 0.00 7,438.22 69.86
001-41-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 31,953.00 0.00 8,467.68 73.50
001-41-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 236.00 0.00 3.79 98.39
001-41-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 83.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-41-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 2,618.00 0.00 2,618.00 0.00
001-41-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 663.00 0.00 454.41 31.46
001-41-530.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.00
001-41-530.43.15 ELECTRIC 5,000.00 0.00 (1,382.15) 127.64
001-41-530.43.50 DUMP SERVICE 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00
001-41-530.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 6,500.00 0.00 2,473.25 61.95
001-41-530.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 5,000.00 0.00 (9.67) 100.19
001-41-530.46.20 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 9,500.00 0.00 3,035.49 68.05
001-41-530.46.30 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 8,500.00 0.00 3,091.31 63.63
001-41-530.46.31 MAINTENANCE OLD TOWN HALL 600.00 0.00 250.00 58.33
001-41-530.46.32 RYCKMAN HOUSE 700.00 0.00 (430.02) 161.43
001-41-530.46.35 PIER MAINTENANCE 1,500.00 0.00 (3,973.30) 364.89
001-41-530.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 7,000.00 0.00 (1,018.85) 114.56
001-41-530.52.00 UNIFORMS 3,125.00 0.00 813.69 73.96
001-41-530.52.05 PROTECTIVE GEAR 1,000.00 0.00 (613.79) 161.38
001-41-530.52.20 TOOLS & HARDWARE 4,750.00 0.00 (576.35) 112.13
001-41-530.52.25 TOOL RENTALS 3,500.00 0.00 3,147.24 10.08

9999



001-41-530.52.50 GAS & OIL 5,800.00 0.00 1,668.86 71.23
001-41-530.53.10 STREET REPAIR 7,500.00 0.00 414.47 94.47
001-41-530.53.20 STREET SIGNS 8,500.00 0.00 1,835.34 78.41
001-41-530.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 1,500.00 0.00 962.20 35.85
001-41-530.57.25 WELDING 500.00 0.00 321.54 35.69
001-41-530.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-41-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 16,927.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

75.13

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 42 GROUNDS KEEPING
001-42-500.14.00 SALARIES OVERTIME 0.00 0.00 (408.53) 100.00
001-42-530.34.91 LANDSCAPING 22,300.00 0.00 14,497.58 34.99
001-42-530.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 1,000.00 0.00 846.30 15.37
001-42-530.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 2,500.00 0.00 2,111.47 15.54
001-42-530.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 25,910.00 0.00 15,164.31 41.47
001-42-530.46.43 TREE EXPENSE 2,000.00 0.00 (1,975.00) 198.75
001-42-530.52.00 UNIFORMS 3,125.00 0.00 3,031.60 2.99
001-42-530.52.05 PROTECTIVE GEAR 575.00 0.00 398.54 30.69
001-42-530.52.20 TOOLS & HARDWARE 500.00 0.00 (477.85) 195.57
001-42-530.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 300.00 0.00 300.00 0.00
001-42-530.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 (25,319.18) 100.00

58,210.00 0.00 8,169.24 85.97

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 72 PARKS & RECREATION
001-72-570.48.10 FOUNDER'S DAY 7,000.00 0.00 (1,268.54) 118.12
001-72-570.48.50 MOVIES IN THE PARK 1,800.00 0.00 390.00 78.33
001-72-570.48.52 FOURTH OF JULY 500.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-72-570.48.53 CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS PARK 3,000.00 0.00 (1,898.02) 163.27
001-72-570.48.60 EASTER EGG HUNT 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.00
001-72-570.48.90 RECREATION PROGRAMS 5,000.00 0.00 4,380.02 12.40
001-72-570.63.01 TENNIS COURT EXPEDITURES 500.00 0.00 (223.97) 144.79
001-72-570.63.02 BBALL & VBALL COURTS 500.00 0.00 (175.79) 135.16

100100



001-72-570.63.05 BOCCE COURT EXPENDITURES 500.00 0.00 370.72 25.86
001-72-570.63.06 PLAYGROUND 0.00 0.00 (593.89) 100.00
001-72-570.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 32,600.00 0.00 525.00 98.39

96.69

Overall Expenditure Rate: 75.75

Fund: 104 ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY B
Account Category: Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used

104-00-271.00.99 CARRY FORWARD 4,904.00 0.00 4,904.00 0.00
104-00-337.90.01 OTHER GRANTS 568.00 0.00 568.00 0.00
104-00-366.47.00 DONATIONS 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
104-00-381.00.00 TRANSFERS IN 5,374.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

15,846.00 0.00 5,472.00 65.47

Account Category: Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 72 PARKS & RECREATION
104-72-570.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00
104-72-570.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 0.00 0.00 (122.92) 100.00
104-72-570.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 (65.00) 100.00
104-72-570.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 960.00 0.00 (135.47) 114.11
104-72-570.46.43 TREE EXPENSE 0.00 0.00 (500.00) 100.00
104-72-570.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 (81.98) 100.00
104-72-570.52.00 UNIFORMS 0.00 0.00 (341.14) 100.00
104-72-570.52.50 GAS FOR COMPOSTING TRUCK 1,092.00 0.00 386.20 64.63
104-72-570.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00
104-72-570.83.01 SUNSHINE JIM 0.00 0.00 (2,297.77) 100.00

12,052.00 0.00 6,841.92 43.23

101101



Fund: 125 BUILDING DEPT
Account Category: Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 24 PROTECTIVE INSPECTIO
125-24-322.00.00 BUILDING PERMITS 160,000.00 0.00 (22,680.95) 114.18
125-24-322.10.00 ZONING PLAN REVIEW 1,000.00 0.00 (1,343.75) 234.38
125-24-322.10.10 SITE PLAN REVIEW P&Z 12,000.00 0.00 5,500.00 54.17
125-24-322.20.00 BUILDING PLAN REVIEW 12,000.00 0.00 11,065.00 7.79
125-24-322.31.00 ADVERTISING COSTS 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.00
125-24-322.31.20 P&Z ADVERTISING 100.00 0.00 (207.15) 307.15
125-24-329.00.00 OTHER LICENSES, FEES & PERMITS 700.00 0.00 (10,013.50) 1,530.50
125-24-329.00.10 BOA VARIANCE FEES 2,000.00 0.00 (500.00) 125.00
125-24-354.00.00 LOCAL ORDINANCE VIOLATION 8,000.00 0.00 (1,789.84) 122.37

110.06
Account Category: Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
125-24-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 141,440.00 0.00 36,238.35 74.38
125-24-500.14.00 SALARIES OVERTIME 0.00 0.00 (820.50) 100.00
125-24-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 10,820.16 0.00 2,871.51 73.46
125-24-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 16,845.50 0.00 4,200.82 75.06
125-24-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 27,083.00 0.00 12,471.68 53.95
125-24-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 136.00 0.00 16.36 87.97
125-24-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 42.00 0.00 42.00 0.00
125-24-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 655.00 0.00 655.00 0.00
125-24-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 452.61 0.00 288.61 36.23
125-24-520.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 300.00 0.00 300.00 0.00
125-24-520.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 500.00 0.00 (420.90) 184.18
125-24-520.51.10 POSTAGE 75.00 0.00 75.00 0.00
125-24-520.52.00 UNIFORMS 260.00 0.00 3.41 98.69
125-24-520.52.20 TOOLS & HARDWARE 75.00 0.00 75.00 0.00
125-24-520.52.50 GAS & OIL 500.00 0.00 96.45 80.71
125-24-520.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 4,200.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
125-24-520.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00
125-24-520.64.01 Capital Outlay 16,000.00 0.00 2,284.95 85.72
125-24-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 350.00 0.00 237.05 32.27

73.21

102102



Fund: 145 AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN
Account Category: Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 00 
145-00-271.00.99 CARRY FORWARD 1,643,004.81 0.00 1,643,004.81 0.00
    Total Dept 00 0.00

Account Category: Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
145-00-510.32.00 AUDITING SERVICES 14,710.00 0.00 11,520.00 21.69
145-00-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 28,304.00 0.00 28,304.00 0.00

7.42

Department: 21 LAW ENFORCEMENT
145-21-520.64.01 Capital Outlay 0.00 93,436.00 (93,436.00) 0.00

0.00

Department: 41 PUBLIC WORKS
145-41-530.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00
145-41-530.31.21 ENGINEERING SERVICES 15,000.00 0.00 14,554.50 2.97
145-41-530.31.21-001 ENGINEERING SERVICES 0.00 0.00 (566.32) 100.00
145-41-530.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,460,662.75 0.00 1,402,447.75 3.99
145-41-530.64.01-001 CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 (574,032.75) 100.00

42.57

Fund: 172 OCEAN PARK PARKING FUND
Account Category: Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 00 
172-00-271.00.99 CARRY FORWARD 62,536.22 0.00 62,536.22 0.00

0.00
Department: 75 TOWN PARKS
172-75-342.10.00 PARKING TICKET REVENUE 15,000.00 0.00 5,850.00 61.00
172-75-344.50.00 PARKING METER REVENUE 98,000.00 0.00 28,869.00 70.54

69.28

103103



Account Category: Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 00 
172-00-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 0.00 0.00 (1,400.00) 100.00
    Total Dept 00 0.00 0.00 (1,400.00) 100.00
Department: 75 TOWN PARKS
172-75-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 34,000.00 0.00 10,898.41 67.95
172-75-575.31.02 LIFEGUARD CONTRACT 21,945.00 0.00 9,528.09 56.58
172-75-575.32.90 BANKING FEES 5,500.00 0.00 2,210.14 59.82
172-75-575.34.10 JANITORIAL CLEANING 1,800.00 0.00 300.00 83.33
172-75-575.34.91 LANDSCAPING 3,500.00 0.00 3,334.29 4.73
172-75-575.41.10 IPS COMMUNICATIONS FEE 4,020.00 0.00 348.66 91.33
172-75-575.43.10 ELECTRICITY 2,700.00 0.00 747.91 72.30
172-75-575.43.20 WATER & SEWER 1,700.00 0.00 827.61 51.32
172-75-575.43.50 DUMP SERVICE 660.00 0.00 660.00 0.00
172-75-575.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 1,500.00 0.00 (1,013.56) 167.57
172-75-575.46.31 BUILDING MAINT RESTROOMS 1,200.00 0.00 1,084.79 9.60
172-75-575.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 3,000.00 0.00 5.84 99.81
172-75-575.46.41 MOWING CONTRACT 9,000.00 0.00 8,066.25 10.38
172-75-575.46.43 TREE EXPENSE 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.00
172-75-575.52.10 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00
172-75-575.52.25 TOOL RENTAL 0.00 0.00 (2,246.37) 100.00
172-75-575.53.15 PARKING LOT REPAIRS 1,500.00 0.00 683.91 54.41
172-75-575.53.20 SIGNS 300.00 0.00 (1,457.64) 585.88
172-75-575.63.03 VOLLEYBALL COURT 2,000.00 0.00 844.59 57.77
172-75-575.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 16,000.00 0.00 (7,881.27) 149.26
172-75-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 1,400.00 0.00 1,400.00 0.00
172-75-764.10.00 Filing Fee Clerk-Parking Ticke 30.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

74.08

104104



Fund: 175 RYCKMAN CROSSOVER PARKI  
Account Category: Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 00 
175-00-271.00.99 CARRY FORWARD 97,998.78 0.00 97,998.78 0.00

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 75 TOWN PARKS
175-75-342.10.00 PARKING TICKET REVENUE 9,500.00 0.00 6,600.00 30.53
175-75-344.50.00 PARKING METER REVENUE 60,500.00 0.00 (9,710.14) 116.05
175-75-344.50.10 PARK PASS REVENUE 3,000.00 0.00 900.00 70.00

73,000.00 0.00 (2,210.14) 103.03

Account Category: Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 00 
175-00-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 0.00 0.00 (30,000.00) 100.00

0.00 0.00 (30,000.00) 100.00
Department: 75 TOWN PARKS
175-75-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 320.00 0.00 320.00 0.00
175-75-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 2,625.00 0.00 841.64 67.94
175-75-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 4,088.00 0.00 1,287.93 68.49
175-75-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 7,967.00 0.00 2,606.42 67.28
175-75-575.32.90 BANKING FEES 2,000.00 0.00 (193.25) 109.66
175-75-575.32.95 IPS BANKING FEE 4,200.00 0.00 4,200.00 0.00
175-75-575.41.15 IPS COMMUNICATION FEE 2,500.00 0.00 512.91 79.48
175-75-575.50.00 RECREATION PROGRAMS 10,500.00 0.00 3,600.00 65.71
175-75-575.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 (14,528.81) 100.00
175-75-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 31,500.00 0.00 31,500.00 0.00

54.11

105105



Fund: 351 BEAUTIFICATION
Account Category: Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 00 
351-00-271.00.99 CARRY FORWARD 45,665.09 0.00 45,665.09 0.00
351-00-366.19.00 TOWN HALL DONATIONS 0.00 0.00 (1,500.00) 100.00
351-00-381.00.00 TRANSFERS IN 30,000.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

41.63

Account Category: Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Used
Department: 41 PUBLIC WORKS
351-41-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,755.00 0.00 74.71 97.29
351-41-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 68.00 0.00 17.33 74.51
351-41-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 21.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
351-41-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 653.00 0.00 653.00 0.00
351-41-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 110.00 0.00 74.41 32.35
351-41-570.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 15,000.00 0.00 6,580.00 56.13
351-41-570.34.91 LANDSCAPING 30,000.00 0.00 28,257.24 5.81
351-41-570.43.15 ELECTRICAL WORK 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
351-41-570.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 2,500.00 0.00 (431.16) 117.25
351-41-570.53.20 STREET SIGNS 1,500.00 0.00 (10,022.65) 768.18
351-41-570.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 7,597.00 (22,057.18) 100.00

75.29

106106



Parking Revenue FY Comparison

FY22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-22 Feb-22 Mar-22 Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22
Ocean 6,177.72 2,223.13 5,534.21 3,780.21 7,192.92 11,928.95 10,320.84 11,929.38 11,468.74 15,481.47 9,933.95
Ryckman 5,648.90 4,696.25 6,241.90 5,189.37 6,473.50 10,227.66 8,573.73 8,038.96 6,248.73 9,884.06 6,624.68
Total 11,826.62 6,919.38 11,776.11 8,969.58 13,666.42 22,156.61 18,894.57 19,968.34 17,717.47 25,365.53 16,558.63

FY23 Oct-23 Nov-23 Dec-23 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23 Jun-23 Jul-23 Aug-23
Ocean 4,921.04 3,785.42 3,456.88 4,996.04 8,137.70 13,056.24 9,875.00 10,732.69 10,164.36
Ryckman 6,354.35 5,050.00 6,359.91 6,415.41 8,745.55 10,817.72 9,235.16 9,540.80 7,688.74
Total 11,275.39 8,835.42 9,816.79 11,411.45 16,883.25 23,873.96 19,110.16 20,273.49 17,853.10

FY22  Sept 2022
Ocean 6,643.21
Ryckman 5,996.24
Total 12,639.45

FY23 Sep-23
Ocean
Ryckman
Total

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH

107107



Public Works Activity  

June 2023 

 

The main part of June was spent constructing the new boardwalk at Ocean Park. The 100 foot long 

boardwalk demand a great deal of our time. 

Landscaping and mowing continued 

Provided cones for Pineapple Run-put out and collected 

Trimmed the seagrapes at Ocean Park 

Removed nearly 200 pounds of debri from tops of stormwater grates 

Assisted in extraction of a child from swing in Ryckman Park /replaced swing after extraction 

Purchased 86 yds of mulch and covered playground and landscape areas 

Installed signs Riverside 

 

108108



TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 
BREVARD COUNTY’S OLDEST BEACH COMMUNITY ESTABLISHED 1883 

507 OCEAN AVENUE, MELBOURNE BEACH, FL 32951-2523 
(321) 724-5860         FAX: (321) 984-8994       www.melbournebeachfl.org 

 
 
 

Building Department Report   
 

June 2023 
 

 
 

 48  permits issued  

 Construction value of the  48 permits totaled $1,209,941.63 

 Total permit fees $20,745.25 

 165  inspections completed 

  48 plans reviewed  

   2 site plan review for P&Z  

   3 vacation rental inspections 

   1 new home 

   0 stop work order 
 

109109



Permit List

Permit AddressType Applicant Issued Expired Paid

07/03/2023
1/2

$365.72405 SURF RD 12/24/20206/26/202Mike Willis Roofing &
Construction LLC

ReroofPRR23-0056

$79.00527 SUNSET BLVD 12/24/20206/27/202SAMS LP GAS COMPANY INCPropanePRO23-0004
$330.82203 SIXTH AVE 12 12/03/20206/06/202Kristin N KellyMechanicalPM23-0032
$79.00203 SIXTH AVE 12 12/05/20206/08/202FOCARAZZO, MICHAELElectricalPE23-0035
$463.60303 SHANNON AVE 12/25/20206/05/202TOTAL HOME ROOFING AND

CONSTRUCTION
ReroofPRR23-0046

$195.36406 RIVERSIDE DR 12/18/20206/21/202Florida Native Roofing
Inc

ReroofPRR23-0054

$1420.97402 RIVERSIDE DR 1 12/12/20206/15/202Charles Carpenter
Construction & Roofing
Inc.

ReroofPRR23-0052

$473.881101 RIVER RD 12/03/20206/06/202RENEWAL BY ANDERSONWindow, Door, & ShutterPWS23-0054
$377.311903 REDWOOD AVE 12/05/20206/08/202WALLABY WINDOWS OF

BREVARD
Window, Door, & ShutterPWS23-0055

$1692.971508 PINE ST 12/06/20206/09/202WATER IN TRANSIT, INC
HERMANN BACH

PoolPPL23-0006

$746.891507 PINE ST 12/06/20206/09/202WATER IN TRANSIT, INC
HERMANN BACH

PoolPPL23-0007

$79.001601 ORANGE ST 12/24/20206/12/202Eau Gallie Electric, IncElectricalPE23-0036
$0.00507 OCEAN AVE 12/25/20206/28/202Charles SilvaMechanicalPM23-0025
$79.00309 OCEAN AVE 12/02/20206/05/202Hamilton, BruceElectricalPE23-0033
$79.00419 OCEAN 12/26/20206/29/202HALL, CONCETTA HALL,

TRENT
FencePF23-0025

$79.00105 OAK ST 12/12/20206/12/202Leon A TuckerPlumbingPE23-0034
$79.00602 MANGO DR 12/26/20206/28/202Johnny Sharrone, JrElectricalPE23-0039
$79.00415 HIBISCUS TRL 12/05/20206/05/202Christopher E SchultzElectricalPE23-0032
$417.59317 HIBISCUS TRL 12/25/20206/26/202FLEMING ROOFING AND

CONSTRUCTION CORP
ReroofPRR23-0057

$1862.50310 HIBISCUS TRL 12/17/20206/05/202HIGBY CONSULTING LLC Res BuildingPRB23-0028
$422.82206 FIR AVE 12/25/20206/15/202RENEWPRO INCORPORATION

INC
ReroofPRR23-0051

$79.00207 FIR AVE 12/25/20206/19/202Robert C DipaoloElectricalPE23-0037
$79.00216 ELM AVE 12/05/20206/08/202SMITH, WALTER GFencePF23-0020
$149.68209 BIRCH AVE 12/13/20206/16/202LAFFERTY ALUMINUM AND

SCREENING LLC
Paver, Concrete, & DeckPCD23-0021

$340.30205 BIRCH AVE 12/23/20206/26/202HARBOUR POOLS & SPASPool ResurfacePPR23-0007
$596.24304 BEAU JEAN AVE 12/11/20206/14/202WINDOW AND DOOR DESIGN

CENTER
Window, Door, & ShutterPWS23-0058

$290.59507 BANYAN WAY 12/13/20206/16/202BREVARD POOLS, INCPool ResurfacePPR23-0006
$1002.04408 BANYAN WAY 12/03/20206/06/202ZACHARY A REYNOLDSMechanicalPM23-0031
$1658.25408 BANYAN WAY 12/02/20206/05/202BATOS DRYWALLMiscellaneousPMC23-0003
$358.75408 BANYAN WAY 12/27/20206/30/202JOHN F MCKESSEYElectricalPE23-0041
$212.71315 AVENUE B 12/05/20206/08/202WALLABY WINDOWS OF

BREVARD
Window, Door, & ShutterPWS23-0056

110110



Permit List

Permit AddressType Applicant Issued Expired Paid

07/03/2023
2/2

$286.19518 AVENUE B 12/27/20206/30/202JOHN LAZARIDISMechanicalPM23-0036
$359.78404 AVENUE B 12/13/20206/16/202NEAL, GARY HOWELL,II;

NEAL, CASEY MARIE
FencePF23-0023

$820.00315 ATLANTIC ST 12/24/20206/27/202NEXT ROOFING INC BRETT
LOWY

ReroofPRR23-0053

$160.342105 ATLANTIC ST 612 12/11/20206/14/202MATTHEW RAY HOMES INCCom BuildingPCB23-0007
$576.461609 ATLANTIC ST 12/18/20206/21/202G&G ROOFING CONSTRUCTION

INC
CHEYANNE@CFLROOFING.COM

ReroofPRR23-0049

$319.801501 ATLANTIC ST A 12/13/20206/05/202J MILLER ROOFING LLCReroofPRR23-0047
$261.381409 ATLANTIC ST 12/02/20206/05/202FL CONTRACTING SERVICES

LLC
ReroofPRR23-0043

$767.36401 ANDREWS DR 12/02/20206/05/202Brevard Window & Doors
Inc

Window, Door, & ShutterPWS23-0051

$358.75400 ANDREWS DR 12/18/20206/12/202GROUNDED BUILDS BREVARD,
LLC

Res BuildingPRB23-0027

$748.25412 ANCHOR KY 12/02/20206/05/202BD ROOFS & EXTERIORS INCReroofPRR23-0048
$198.40405 6TH AVE 12/09/20206/09/202SOBY, JOHNMiscellaneousPMC23-0004
$442.80211 SIXTH AVE 12/18/20206/21/202G&G ROOFING CONSTRUCTION

INC
CHEYANNE@CFLROOFING.COM

ReroofPRR23-0055

$97.00503 THIRD AVE 12/06/20206/09/202American Fence of
Brevard

FencePF23-0021

$345.43312 THIRD AVE 12/24/20206/12/202BD ROOFS & EXTERIORS INCReroofPRR23-0050
$376.07509 THIRD AVE 12/11/20206/14/202American Fence of

Brevard
FencePF23-0022

$79.00311 FIRST AVE 12/23/20206/21/202William J LoganElectricalPE23-0038
$379.25301 FIRST AVE 12/27/20206/30/202Robert NoekerMechanicalPM23-0035

$20745.25

48

Total Paid:

Total Permits:

111111



1/3

07/03/2023Inspection Totals

1st Reinspection 1

Building Inspection 2

Column & Tie Beam 5

Dock Framing 1

Dry In 1

Dry-In 16

Dry-In Roof 3

Drywall 5

Electric Pre-Power 1

Electrical 3

Electrical Underground 1

Equipotential 3

Final Building 9

Final Electrical 6

Final Fence 5

Final Mechanical 6

Final Paver, Concrete, & Deck 2

Final Plumbing 5

Final Pool Resurface 1

Final Propane 1

112112



2/3

07/03/2023Inspection Totals

Final Reroof 15

Final Window, Door, & Shutter 14

Fire Inspection 4

Footer 1

Foundation 1

Framing 5

In Progress 1

In-Progress 2

Insulation 3

Plumbing Top Out 2

Plumbing Underground 1

Rough Electrical 10

Rough Mechanical 1

Rough Miscellaneous 1

Rough Plumbing 6

Sewer Connect 1

Sheathing 2

Sheathing (or Affidavit) 1

Slab 6

Steel & Ground 1

113113



3/3

07/03/2023Inspection Totals

Truss, Bracing & Strapping 5

Underground Plumbing 5

Total # of Inspections: 165

114114



115115



116116



117117



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Town of Melbourne Beach 

Fire Department 

 

MONTHLY REPORT - June 2023 
 

 
 
Incident Response 

For the month of June 2023, the Melbourne Beach Volunteer Fire Department 

responded to 19 calls for service.  The average number of responding volunteer 

personnel per paged out call for the month was 8.    

Breakdown: 

 13 Fire/Rescue 911 Calls (Paged out) 

 1 Special Event Standby (Pineappleman Triathlon) 

 1 Public Service Incident (Residential Smoke Detector Assistance) 

 4 Fire Inspections 

 

 

Department Membership 

 1 Fire Chief (Full-Time) 

 1 Maintenance Technician (Part-Time) 

 23 Certified Volunteer Firefighters 

 8 Support Services Volunteers 

 1 Administrative Volunteer 

 1 Volunteer Fire Chaplain  

 1 Probationary Volunteer 

 

 

 

 

 

118118



Page 2 of 2 

 

Notable Incidents 

 06/02/2023 – MBVFD Water Rescue Team & Fire-1 assisted Florida Fish & 
Wildlife Commission with the recovery of a derelict vessel on the south beaches. 

 06/08/2023 – Squad 58 & Fire-1 responded to a child stuck in an infant swing at 
Ryckman Park.  Swing disassembled and child extricated, no medical need. 

 06/28/2023 – Engine 58 & Fire-1 responded automatic-aid to Indialantic for brush 
fire.  MBVFD units canceled en-route by Truck 57. 

 

 

Notable Events 

The Department provided standby water rescue & EMS coverage for the Pineappleman 

Triathlon event in Melbourne Beach.  There were no remarkable incidents during the event.   

First Responders from Melbourne Beach, Indialantic, and Indian Harbour Beach joined together 

for a multi-agency training event with pilots from HealthFirst’s First Flight, Brevard County 

Sheriff’s Office, and the Florida Fish & Wildlife Commission to discuss local public safety air 

assets and how we can work together as a unified team on critical medical and search & rescue 

incidents.  Thanks to the Brevard County Sherriff’s Office and HealthFirst’s First Flight for 

bringing out some of their rotary-wing aircraft to show our crews, and thanks to local 

photographer Julian Leek for getting some great photos! 

The Fire Department hosted & instructed many community courses in June; including a 

bleeding control course for lifeguards from Brevard County Ocean Rescue, a CPR/First Aid 

certification course for employees from a local business, the Fire Prevention Merit Badge course 

for a local Boy Scout of America Troop, and the State volunteer firefighter certification program 

for recruits from Melbourne Beach & Indian Harbour Beach. 

The Fire Department partnered with the Melbourne Beach Police Department to host their 

Movies in the Park event in the fire station garage due to severe weather. 

Fire Department leadership continues to work with the Volunteer Firefighters Association Board 

of Directors and multiple marine contractors to discuss potential ideas and funding options for 

the construction of a dock & boat lift for the Fire Department’s marine rescue boat.  While the 

community has been overwhelmingly supportive about the concept, feedback and concerns 

about the location are being taken into consideration and alternative solutions are being 

investigated. 

119119



Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 7/14/2023 3:22:12 PM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Incident Address and Type for Date Range (Landscape)

INCIDENT # DATE LOCATION 
TYPE ADDRESS INCIDENT TYPE ALARM CLEARED

SCENE
2023-88 06/02/2023 1010 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 06/02/2023 10:37 06/02/2023 11:23

2023-89 06/02/2023 4835 S Hwy A1A , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Assist police or other governmental agency 06/02/2023 11:15 06/02/2023 13:04

2023-90 06/04/2023 519 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Cover assignment, standby, moveup 06/04/2023 06:03 06/04/2023 10:03

2023-91 06/05/2023 300 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 06/05/2023 10:12 06/05/2023 11:31

2023-92 06/06/2023 2207 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 06/06/2023 22:54 06/06/2023 23:50

2023-93 06/07/2023 504 Colony ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 06/07/2023 21:43 06/07/2023 22:12

2023-94 06/08/2023 509 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Extrication of victim(s) from building/structure 06/08/2023 11:29 06/08/2023 12:08

2023-95 06/08/2023 2207 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 06/08/2023 17:44 06/08/2023 18:15

2023-96 06/08/2023 610 Citrus CT , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Public service 06/08/2023 18:47 06/08/2023 19:14

2023-97 06/10/2023 2207 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 06/10/2023 17:09 06/10/2023 17:46

2023-98 06/11/2023 2207 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 06/11/2023 15:35 06/11/2023 16:04

2023-99 06/12/2023 315 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 06/12/2023 10:00 06/12/2023 10:24

2023-100 06/14/2023 324 Avenue B , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Smoke scare, odor of smoke 06/14/2023 21:42 06/14/2023 21:59

2023-101 06/15/2023 419 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 06/15/2023 06:23 06/15/2023 06:58

2023-102 06/15/2023 321 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 06/15/2023 08:45 06/15/2023 11:18

2023-103 06/21/2023 103 Riverside DR , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 06/21/2023 09:44 06/21/2023 09:58

2023-104 06/23/2023 2051 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 06/23/2023 08:53 06/23/2023 15:13

2023-105 06/26/2023 1005 Atlantic , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 06/26/2023 04:03 06/26/2023 06:59

2023-106 06/28/2023 1304 S Miramar AVE , Indialantic, FL, 32903 Dispatched & cancelled en route 06/28/2023 19:12 06/28/2023 19:21

Incident Status(s): All Incident Statuses | Start Date: 06/01/2023 | End Date: 06/30/2023

Doc Id: 1251
emergencyreporting.com

Location Type is only filled in when it is marked Intersection, Directions, or National Grid on Basic Info 3.

Page # 1 of 1

120120



Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 7/14/2023 3:23:13 PM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Personnel Count per Incident for Date Range

INCIDENT NUMBER OF PEOPLE

NUMBER DATE INCIDENT TYPE FDID ON 
APPARATUS

NOT ON 
APPARATUS TOTAL

2023-88 6/2/2023 10:37:06 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 1 0 1

2023-89 6/2/2023 11:15:34 551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 19112 9 3 12

2023-90 6/4/2023 06:03:14 571 - Cover assignment, standby, moveup 19112 12 3 15

2023-91 6/5/2023 10:12:43 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 1 0 1

2023-92 6/6/2023 22:54:31 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 19112 5 4 9

2023-93 6/7/2023 21:43:41 445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 19112 3 3 6

2023-94 6/8/2023 11:29:53 351 - Extrication of victim(s) from building/structure 19112 2 3 5

2023-95 6/8/2023 17:44:33 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 19112 7 6 13

2023-96 6/8/2023 18:47:53 553 - Public service 19112 3 8 11

2023-97 6/10/2023 17:09:40 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 19112 3 2 5

2023-98 6/11/2023 15:35:19 735 - Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 19112 4 4 8

2023-99 6/12/2023 10:00:45 445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 19112 4 4 8

2023-100 6/14/2023 21:42:52 651 - Smoke scare, odor of smoke 19112 5 5 10

2023-101 6/15/2023 06:23:57 445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 19112 4 3 7

2023-102 6/15/2023 08:45:43 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 1 0 1

2023-103 6/21/2023 09:44:29 745 - Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 19112 1 5 6

2023-104 6/23/2023 08:53:18 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 1 0 1

2023-105 6/26/2023 04:03:51 733 - Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 19112 3 1 4

2023-106 6/28/2023 19:12:45 611 - Dispatched & cancelled en route 19112 3 7 10

TOTAL # OF INCIDENTS: 19 AVERAGES: 3.8 3.2 7.0

Start Date: 06/01/2023 | End Date: 06/30/2023

Doc Id: 358
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED incidents included

Page # 1 of 1

**

**
**
**
**

**
**
**
**
**

**

**
**

Total # of incidents 
    paged out for 
volunteer response: 13

** Without EMS Assist or Service Calls:                   4.1               3.8             7.9  
             (Paged out calls only)

Note: 900 series "Special Incidents" include fire inspections performed.

121121



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec YTD
Total Calls for Service 1578 1188 1366 1370 1571 1480 8553
Total Felonies 0 5 1 1 3 0 10
Total Misdemeanors 5 2 4 12 4 8 35
Total Capias Requests 0 0 0 2 0 2 4
Total Traffic Arrests 1 0 0 3 0 2 6
Total Other Arrests 3 0 0 0 0 0 3

911 Investigation 27 42 32 39 40 35 215
Alarm Business 5 7 4 1 2 1 20
Alarm Residence 1 1 5 9 4 2 22
Alarm Vehicle 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Assault 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
Animal Complaint 7 4 6 3 5 4 29
AOA Fire/Medical 6 5 1 2 6 20
AOA LEO 13 11 6 1 1 6 38
Assist Citizen 7 11 12 8 14 9 61
Assist DCF 1 2 0 1 1 2 7
Assist Motorist 1 0 1 1 0 1 4
Attempt To Contact 4 7 4 2 4 3 24
Baker Act 0 3 0 0 2 1 6
Battery 0 1 0 0 0 1 2
Battery-Domestic 1 0 0 1 0 0 2
Burglary - Residential 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Burglary - Vehicle 1 3 0 0 0 0 4
Civil Matter 1 4 2 3 5 2 17
Crash 6 1 6 7 5 4 29
Criminal Mischief 0 3 5 4 2 1 15
Deceased Person 0 0 3 0 0 0 3
Disturbance 3 2 6 0 7 10 28
Disturbance Domestic 1 1 2 0 1 0 5
Disturbance Noise 2 3 0 1 7 1 14
Fraud/Forgery 1 2 1 0 3 1 8
House Checks 161 70 127 89 382 267 1096
Illegal Dumping 0 0 0 0 0 2 2
Illegal Parking 21 27 52 46 43 66 255
Indecent/Lewd Act 1 0 0 0 0 1
Information 8 6 17 11 11 14 67
Injured/Ill Person 20 17 15 24 12 16 104

Melbourne Beach Police Department
122122



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec YTD
Intoxicated Driver 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Intoxicated Person 1 0 0 1 1 0 3
Investigation 1 0 1 3 4 5 14
Missing Person 0 0 1 2 1 1 5
Narcotics 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Open Door 3 0 3 1 1 1 9
Ordinance Violation/Code Enf 1 0 0 0 0 1 2
Overdose 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Parking Citations 21 24 81 35 44 51 256
Patrol Area 87 70 147 124 229 186 843
Patrol Area Business 185 160 201 225 233 272 1276
Patrol Area Residential 522 453 454 453 563 508 2953
Patrol Area School 22 20 32 52 59 34 219
Phone Call - Threatening 1 0 0 0 0 2 3
Property Confiscated 0 0 0 1 0 0 1
Property Found 3 5 4 2 3 4 21
Property Lost 0 1 3 3 1 1 9
Reckless Driving 5 4 4 6 7 5 31
Retail Theft 0 0 0 1 0 1 2
School Zone 23 30 22 46 36 2 159
Shooting in the Area 1 0 1 0 0 0 2
Soliciting 1 1 0 0 1 0 3
Special Detail 0 0 3 0 3 1 7
Special Response ATV 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Special Response Drone 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Standby-Keep the Peace 1 1 2 0 0 2 6
Suicide 0 1 0 0 0 0 1
Suicide - Attempt/Threat 0 1 0 0 0 1 2
Suspicious Incident 19 9 8 18 10 16 80
Suspicious Person 11 6 6 14 16 8 61
Suspicious Vehicle 14 21 14 13 12 14 88
Theft 1 1 0 2 3 2 9
Traffic Citations 47 19 24 30 22 25 167
Traffic Complaint 3 2 1 3 10 3 22
Traffic Enforcement 327 127 135 104 79 113 885
Traffic Stop 205 101 126 121 114 93 760
Traffic Obstruction 0 0 2 2 2 0 6
Trespass 0 3 4 3 4 3 17

Melbourne Beach Police Department
123123



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec YTD
Vehicle Abandoned 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Vehicle Inspection 4 5 3 1 2 2 17
Vehicle Repo/Tow 0 0 0 0 1 1 2
Wanted Person 0 0 0 0 1 1 2
Written Warnings 26 5 5 33 35 34 138

Vehicle Mileage Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec YTD
Car 300 1000 1246 1605 1163 921 1414 7349
Car 360 425 1209 1051 979 954 737 5355
Car 361 1066 748 562 517 1296 1122 5311
Car 363 118 141 132 387 182 260 1220
Car 364 74 74 74 86 72 1 381
Car 366 548 484 1052 1000 839 431 4354
Car 367 625 506 563 494 460 727 3375
ATV 1 0 23 28 13 55 31 150
ATV 2 0 1 14 0 8 23 46

Melbourne Beach Police Department
124124



 

  

Monthly Report Page 1 
 

   
 

Operations:  

In June 2023, The Department responded to 1213 calls for service and 267 house checks.   

Activity: 

 25 Citations / 34 Written Warnings  

 93 Traffic Stops 

 113 Traffic Enforcement 

 3Traffic Complaint 

 51 Parking Citations 

 Our radar trailer continues to be placed in various locations throughout the Town.    

 PD News 

 The Police Department has lost and found miscellaneous items that have been brought into the 

department, for example, keys, sunglasses, and children's toys. These items were found at our 

beach accesses and Rychman Park. If you believe you may have lost things, come to the Police 

Department during business hours Monday – Friday, 8 am to 5 pm. 

 We are continuing our beach patrol, on the weekends through the end of August. The 

Melbourne Beach Officers will patrol our beach, the accesses, and the parks to remind 

beachgoers of Rip Currents and any parking concerns.  

 Movie in the Park was held inside the MBVFD due to rain. Thank you again Chief Brown for 

modifying the bays for this event.    

 Officer Sullivan will attend SRO training next month at Eastern Florida State College.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Melbourne Beach Police Department 

Monthly Report 

June 2023 

125125



Monthly Report Page 2 
 

Stops Signs on Riverside at Avenue A and Sunset: 

I have received emails and phone calls from residents complaining about vehicles speeding and passing on 

Riverside Drive between Andrews and Avenue A. I have also witnessed a car passing another in that area. As 

a result, I have directed my officers to concentrate on that area for violations. Additionally, we posted the 

F.S.S. for Passing in a no-passing zone on the message board for several weeks, along with a fine amount.  

I had the Stalker speed trailer set up at the intersection of Riverside Drive and Avenue A from June 6, 2023, 

thru July 3, 2023, to collect data on speed, vehicle count, and average speed in that area.   

Here is the statistical traffic analysis that was taken by our Stalker portable speed trailer.  

The posted speed on Riverside Drive is 25 mph  

Avenue A and Riverside: Start 6/7/2023 8:07 am - Stop 6/15/2023 11:11 am 

Total vehicles: 12,868 

Average speed: 29.6 mph  

Average speed 10 mph over the limit: 35.4pmh 623 cars 

Under limit: 7157 cars  

Max speed: 69 mph (possible sprinkler)  

Avenue A and Riverside: Start 6/15/2023 11:15 am – Stop 6/26/2023 7:29 am 

Total vehicles: 12,412 

Average speed 10 mph over the limit: 29.1 399 cars 

Under limit: 5811 cars 46% 

Over limit: 6601 cars 54% 

Max speed: 75 mph (possible sprinkler) 

Avenue A and Riverside: Start 6/26/2023 7:33 am – Stop 7/3/2023 8:38 am  

Total vehicles: 8,161 

Average speed 10 mph over the limit: 34.1 89 cars 

Under limit: 7124 cars 87% 

Over limit: 1037 cars 13% 

Max speed: 68 mph (possible sprinkler) 

Note: Directed Traffic Enforcement (MBPD Officers) Traffic stops, Warnings, and Citations from 6/7/2023 – 

7/6/2023 in this area. 

15 Traffic stops on Riverside Drive 

4 Citations 

3 Written Warnings 

8 Verbal warnings 

20 Directed patrols 

126126



 

  

Monthly Report Page 1 
 

 

23 Traffic stops on Ocean Ave (500 Blk). This is where the Officer stopped the vehicle for a violation on 

Riverside.  

8 Citations 

6 Written warnings 

9 Verbal warnings 

20 Directed patrols.  

Traffic crashes, D.U.I.’s and Hit and Runs from 12/29/2018 – 7/10/2023 400 Riverside Drive to 519 

Ocean Avenue 

17 total 

As you can see in the final report from 6/26/203 to 7/3/23, the total number of vehicles has decreased, and I 

would attribute some of that to "no school/summer break."   

I firmly believe those stop signs will reduce the number of vehicles driving on Riverside and minimize 

speeding. Most importantly, the safety of our pedestrians/bicyclists that travel in that area.  

The Melbourne Beach Police Officers and I are committed to community policing and keeping our Town safe, 

which is our #1 priority.  

Please see the attachments:  

 Speed Trailer report 

 Sergeant's monthly reports           

Stay Safe, Chief Melanie Griswold 

 

 

127127



 

 

   
 
 

Monthly Report June 2023 
 

 
House Checks: 186 
 

• 06/01- Domestic verbal in the 300 block of South Palm Avenue. The male and female that 
live at that residence were in a verbal argument. 

• 06/09- Battery in the 300 block of Ocean Avenue. The male victim had injuries to his face 
and refused medical. The victim also refused to pursue charges. The suspect was unknown 
and was not able to be located. The case is closed.    

• 06/09- Stalking in the 200 block of Third Avenue. Capias was filed and sent to the State 
Attorney’s Office. 

• 06/10- Assist other agency (DCF) in the 200 block of Third Avenue. Officers stood by while 
DCF conducted their investigation.  

• 06/16- Traffic crash in the 1700 block of Atlantic Street (1) vehicle involved. No injuries were 
reported, and the vehicle was towed due to extensive damage.  

• 06/17- Domestic verbal in the 700 block of Riverside Drive. Father and daughter were in a 
verbal disturbance. Nothing physical took place. Parties were separated.  

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Jason Hinchman 

Sergeant 
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343  Fax: (321)725-3253 
 

128128



 

 

   
 

 Sgt. Sadler Monthly Report June 2023 
 

6/3- Stalking in the 200 blk of Third Avenue. Case closed as information only. 
 
6/3- Petit Theft in the 200 blk of Third Avenue. Capias filed on suspect. 
 
6/5-  Traffic crash in the 400 blk of Ocean Avenue. Truck backed up into a mailbox. No injuries 
or major damage. 
 
6/6- Domestic disturbance in the 300 blk of Avenue A between male and female. The disturbance 
was verbal only. 
 
6/6- Traffic Crash in the area of Ocean Avenue and Riverside Drive. Vehicle struck a tree after 
driving off the roadway. No injuries and the vehicle was towed due to damage. 
 
6/6- Assisted the Brevard County Sheriff’s Office with a death investigation in the 2500 blk of 
Highway A1A. Case turned over to BCSO for investigation. 
 
6/11- Trespass warning issued to a male in the 900 blk of Oak Street. 
 
6/11- Trespass warning issued to a male in the 900 blk of Oak Street. 
 
6/14- Female arrested for a warrant out of Brevard County for Grand theft in the 900 blk of Oak 
Street. Female turned over to BCSO. 
 
6/19- Traffic crash in the 900 blk of Oak Street. Truck backed into a small pole. No injuries or 
major damage. 
 
6/19- Trespass warning issued to a male in the 900 blk of Oak Street. 
 
6/20- Retail theft in the 900 blk of Oak Street. Prosecution declined.  
 
6/20- Crash investigation in the 300 blk of First Avenue. Truck backed into a mailbox. No injuries 
or major damage. 
 
6/27- Reckless driver identified in the 300 blk of Ocean Avenue. 2.0 grams of marijuana seized 

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Jason Sadler 

Sergeant 
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343  Fax: (321)725-3253 
 

129129



 

 

for destruction.  
 
6/27- Petit theft of a cell phone in the 300 blk of Ocean Avenue. Case pending investigation. 
 
6/28- Suspicious person identified in the area of Ocean Avenue and Atlantic Street. Small 
marijuana joint confiscated for destruction. 
 
 
 
 

• Total House Checks - 81 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

130130



131131



132132



133133



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   New Business  

Meeting Date:  July 19, 2023 

From:   Marivi Walker, Commissioner   

RE:   Bike Lane on Riverside Drive 

 

Background Information: 

Add a designated bike lane along Riverside Drive in conjunction with the re-pavement project.   

 

 

Recommendation:   

Consider adding a designated bike lane along Riverside Drive in conjunction with the re-pavement 

project.   

 

 

 

Attachments:   

 

134134



Attachments: Proposal from All Dry / awaiting other proposals 

Date Prepared: 7/13/23 

Prepared By: Tom Davis 

Meeting Date: 7-19-23 

 
Agenda Category: 

 Proclamations & Awards  Public Hearings 

 Presentations  Old Business 

 Boards & Committees x New Business 

 Consent  Other:  

 

Subject: Mold clean up of Community Center 

Recommended Action: Proceed with complete cleanup asap 

Background Information: It has been discovered that there is mold inside the 
Community Center.  Investigation with the Coast Air 
personnel identified the likely contributors to the 
high increase the humidity level in that building. 
Contributors: the air box on the top of the air 
handlers is very old and likely allowing outside air to 
enter and be blown into the building, a water drain 
pipe on the air handlers had become dislodged and 
letting the water drain inside the enclosed area 
where they are housed. The fan on the ac was 
turned to run constantly which meant it was 
pumping the moist air from the area of the air 
handlers. 
Also on numerous occasions the school group using 
the Community Center on Thursdays were opening 
all the doors for the entire day. This allowed 
humidity to build up all day.  On occasions I have 
also noticed that renters were leaving the doors 
stand open.   
As a results of all these factors both the AC 
company and the mold cleaning company believe 
that is the cause of the appearance of mold.  

 

135135



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   New Business   

Meeting Date:  July 19, 2023 

From:   Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager   

RE:   Request for Intent to Proceed 

 

Background Information: 

The Building Department has received an application from Djon Pepaj to amend his current 

Binding Lot Agreement. The application requests a move of his current restaurant parking lot to 

the next lot over, owned by Mr. Pepaj, to the West. Should the Commission agree to the 

Amendment, the Town Attorney would then amend the current Binding Lot Agreement, notice a 

public hearing and bring back to the Commission for approval during the September regular Town 

Commission Meeting. 

 

Recommendation:   

Consider the request to amend the Binding Lot Agreement.  Give consent to the Town Attorney 

to legally amend the Binding Lot Agreement, if the Commission is in agreement to move forward. 

 

Attachments:   

Application for Amendment to the Binding Lot Agreement. 

 

136136



137137



138138



139139



140140



141141



142142



143143



144144



145145



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   New Business   

Meeting Date:  July 19, 2023 

From:   PW Director Tom Davis   

RE:   Creation of a Veterans Memorial Park 

 

Background Information: 

The only Veterans recognition memorial that the Town currently has is a small granite marker at 

the flag pole at Town Hall. We found that between Town Staff Members and their families, there 

are 96 persons who served. I suspect that there are many residents who also proudly served 

Our Country in the military.  We do not know the number of our Residents who served or who 

have family members who served but I suspect we would be surprised at how high that number 

would be. 

With the number of visitors we have in our Town, I feel certain that a significant number of 

Veterans and/or family members of Veterans compose those visitors. A memorial park would be 

a nice addition.  Circle Park is a large open area that is vacant of any equipment or structures. If 

we were to place a nice memorial in that park I feel that would be a more appropriate 

"recognizable" show of appreciation for those who served. 

 

Recommendation:   

Approval to proceed with a plan to create a Veterans Park for our Town. 

 

Attachments:   

Photos of some memorials 

 

146146



       

  

147147



       Town Manager Report for July 2023 
 

 

1.  Building Official and I met with Cynthia from Veritas to discuss the possibility of Veritas filling in for 

the Building Official while on vacation, etc. 

2.  Met with Clearwave Fiber to discuss their entrance into the Greater Melbourne fiber optics market 

and the impact to our residents. 

3. Received a request from the Girl Scouts to develop Triangle Park.  The approval would include a 

pathway planted with succulents since there isn’t a water source at the park.  A more detailed plan will 

be provided in the ball when the Girl Scout meetings resume. 

 4. Attended the excellent 4th of July event sponsored by the Melbourne Beach Fire Associations. 

5. Met with Town Attorney Repperger, Building Official Bitgood and resident Warren Mall to discuss 

variance orders, corner lot setbacks and public records requests. 

6.  Attended Planning and Zoning meeting for one site plan review (passed). 

 7.  Attended budget workshop.  

8.  Installed historical photos in the dormitory side of the old Post Office. 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

148148



JJULY 2023 TASK LIST 

 

 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO  

Evaluate street ends for 

suitability for kayak and 

paddleboard launch 

4/5/2023 6/28/2023 6/28/2023 Wyatt Hoover  

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

5/17/2023 Public Works Director – Provided photos and spoke about the street ends First through Sixth which has large 

coquina rocks.  Fifth Ave is the best option. 

4/5/2023 Added to Action Items – Have Town Staff look at and evaluate the remaining street end accesses for 

suitability to add resources for kayaks and paddleboards 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Parking Stickers 3/15/2023 7/19/2023  Wyatt Hoover  

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

6/28/2023 Town Manager – Waiting on the mockup, concept is smaller, circle, one color background with the year on 

it.  Look into why they turn brown 

4/19/2023 Town Manager – When people come in they are being told that the sticker is switching to a yearly sticker; 

the new sticker will be smaller and have a solid color with the year.  Bring a draft of the sticker in June. 

3/15/2023 Added to Action Items – Timing for when residents can start requesting the new sticker, look at alternate 

vendors for the sticker for higher quality, and how to differentiate the sticker from year to year. 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE  CLOSED REQUESTER ASSIGNED TO 

S.E.A. PROJECT 2/17/2021 7/19/2023  Mayor Hoover Town Manager 

Date Directions/Notes 

3/15/2023 Put on the Town Commission Workshop 

1/18/2023 Town Manager – Waiting on the concept drawings from Bowman.  

11/16/2022 TM – Next step is the concept drawings and sidewalks 

Corey Runte – Get a quote from the Town’s secondary civil engineering company 

9/21/2022 Waiting to hear back from BSE 

7/20/2022 TM – The workshop is scheduled for August 24th at 6:30 pm. 

149149



JJULY 2023 TASK LIST 

 

 

6/15/2022 Town Manager – Spoke with Neal, 2 proposed dates in August, bring final date next month 

5/18/2022 Town Manager – additional parking spots are done, planting in Bicentennial Park was done, new poles along 

Ocean Ave are in the works.  The next big-ticket item is underground retention for stormwater 

Mayor Hoover – FDOT will be doing their portion of A1A fiscal year 2026. 

Schedule a public workshop in July. 

04/20/2022 Town will have a tent during Founders Day to discuss the S.E.A. Vision and get feedback from the residents.  

Waiting on estimates for new Town signs from Fast Signs.  Flowers planted at the very north end of Bi-

Centennial.  Flowers also planted around Ryckman House.  Established 4 more spaces for golf cart parking.   

2/16/2022 Town Manager Mascaro has met with the resident volunteer and they are currently working on the plan – 

she will provide another update again in March. Mayor Hoover suggested researching FDOT funding for 

Bicentennial Park and making it an entrance to the Town with a more impressive sign.  

1/17/2022 Vision statement was approved. An update will be given at February RTCM. 

12/15/2021 Update at January RTCM with Dix Height information.  

10/20/2021 Discussed during meeting in depth. Update at Nov. RTCM 

9/15/21 Currently working on RFP for gardening services and will present it at next RTCM as an agenda item. TM has 

not been able to make contact with Susan Hall  

8/18/2021 Added landscaping of Parks to Action item – and discussed RFP for landscaping services  
 

7/21/2021 Check in with Susan (include VM Barton) and update at August RTCM 
 

6/16/2021 Commission will no longer pursue FDOT grant but will continue research of other funding and grants. 
 

4/21/2021 Commission approved increasing payment. Grant will be awarded in June. Update July RTCM 
 

3/17/2021 VM Barton researched FDOT landscape grant. Commission approved $5,000 to begin landscape design 

process with an architectural designer. Discuss at April TCW and April RTCM. 

2/17/2021 Explore grants, etc. Discuss at TCW on March 3, 2021 

 

12/2/2020 

Mayor Hoover suggested they do the necessary research and reach out to landlords and business owners, 

starting with the area east of the traffic light on both sides of the road north and south – and then meet 

again to discuss in February. Plan for workshops with business owners and PNZ involvement 

 

12/16/2020 

Commissioner Walters requested the Town research a better microphone system, including the option of 

wireless microphones. He feels the sound quality of the current microphones is very poor. Dual timers were 

also requested by the Commission (we have one and need one more). 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTER ASSIGNED TO 

150150



JJULY 2023 TASK LIST 

 

 

Options and costs for live 

streaming 

9/21/2022 7/19/2023  Joyce Barton Town Clerk 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

5/17/2023 Town Clerk – Working with a company that assists with RFPs and finding companies that do the work. 

3/15/2023 Town Clerk – Spoke with an individual who is familiar with audio/visual equipment and wanted to get a feel 

for the price range prior to spending time looking into products.  Commission decided to send this out for 

RFP. 

1/18/2023 Town Clerk – Contacted several companies who advised not interested, cannot get the products, or didn’t 

respond.  Will start contacting individuals that use audio visual equipment rather than companies. 

11/16/2022 Town Clerk - contacted other municipalities to see how they stream and what they use and also reaching 

out to private companies.  This item ties into the upgrades to the audio system that was approved, but not 

done yet to make sure the systems are compatible. 

9/21/2022 Added to Action Items  

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Sixth Ave boat ramp 

improvements 

8/17/2022 8/16/2023  Commissioner 

Runte  

Town Manager/ PW Director 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

6/28/2023 Look into grant opportunities 

3/15/2023 Put on the Town Commission Workshop 

2/15/2023 Tom Davis- met with Bowman Engineering at Sixth Ave boat ramp to get them to draw something up 

1/18/2023 Tom Davis – installed the geogrid and painted the wall, considering installing a kayak rack 

Commissioner Corey Runte – come up with future vision plans and get concept drawings/proposals to 

beautify it and address parking 

11/16/2022 Joyce Barton – Spoke about possible grant options 

Corey Runte – Research funding options 

Mayor Hoover – Start with fixing the seawall 

9/21/2022 Discussed under new business agenda item D. 

8/17/2022 Research what the exact issue is with parking that prevents the Town from getting grant money  

151151



JJULY 2023 TASK LIST 

 

 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Lifeguard coverage 3/15/2023 9/20/2023  Wyatt Hoover  

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

6/28/2023 Town Manager – Met with County Manager, waiting on the County Commission.  

Corey Runte – Asked to look into the cost of having our own lifeguard program. 

5/17/2023 Town Manager – Fire Chief Gavin Brown is the liaison for this.  Right now the Brevard County Commission is 

looking into it 

3/15/2023 Added to Action Items – Fact finding related to funding from other municipalities, open a dialogue with 

Indialantic, reach out to US Lifesaving Association and Florida Beach Patrol to see what other heavy-traffic 

beaches are doing, make sure flag signs are up to date, options and costs to get a lifeguard at our beach 

year round. 

 

 

152152


	Agenda Packet Cover Page.pdf (p.1)
	Table of Contents.pdf (p.2)
	230719 RTCM Agenda.pdf (p.3-4)
	230628 RTCM Minutes.pdf (p.5-15)
	Site Plan 510 Third in grayscale.pdf (p.16-86)
	Board Application Charles Cain.pdf (p.87)
	Board Application HPAB Dan Hansen 2023.pdf (p.88)
	Citizen of the Year.pdf (p.89)
	Finance 1 June FY23 Finance Memo.pdf (p.90)
	Finance 2 June 2023 Revenues and Expenditures.pdf (p.91-106)
	REVENUEANDEXPENDITURE

	Finance 3 Parking Revenue FY Comparison.pdf (p.107)
	Sheet1

	Public Works June23 activities.pdf (p.108)
	Building 1 2023_06 Building Department Report.pdf (p.109)
	Building 2 2023_06 Permit List.pdf (p.110-111)
	Building 3 2023_06 Inspection Totals.pdf (p.112-114)
	Code Enforcement.pdf (p.115-117)
	FD 1  Report 6-2023.pdf (p.118-119)
	FD 2 Incident Address June 2023.pdf (p.120)
	FD 3 Personnel Count June 2023.pdf (p.121)
	Police 1.pdf (p.122-124)
	2023

	Police 2 June 2023.pdf (p.125-127)
	Police 3 Hinchman.pdf (p.128)
	Police 4 Sadler.pdf (p.129-130)
	Police 5.pdf (p.131-133)
	Bike Lane along Riverside.pdf (p.134)
	Community Center Mold Clean Up.pdf (p.135)
	Djons 1 Agenda, Binding Lot Agreement.pdf (p.136)
	Djons 2 Application for Amendment to Binding Lot Agreement.pdf (p.137-145)
	Veterans Park 1 Agenda.pdf.pdf (p.146)
	Veterans Park 2.pdf (p.147)
	Town Manager July Town Manager Memo.pdf (p.148)
	Z Task List.pdf (p.149-152)

	Name: Daniel Hansen
	Home Phone: 321-750-2748
	Address: 435 Riverview Lane Melbourne Beach, FL 32951
	Mobile: 321-750-2748
	Email: uss696@msn.com
	Business Phone: 
	Business Name: 
	DOB: 08/04/1943
	Text1: Historic Preservation and Awareness 
	Text2: I am a board member of the Honor America Liberty Bell Museum
	Experience: I am on the Sons of the American Revolution. 
	CheckBox11: Off
	CheckBox12: Off
	CheckBox13: Off
	CheckBox14: Off
	CheckBox15: Off
	CheckBox16: Off
	CheckBox17: Yes
	CheckBox18: Off
	CheckBox19: Off
	CheckBox20: Off
	CheckBox1: Yes
	CheckBox2: Off
	CheckBox3: Yes
	CheckBox4: Off
	CheckBox4_13: Off
	CheckBox4_21: Yes
	CheckBox4_22: Yes
	CheckBox4_23: Off
	CheckBox4_31: Yes
	CheckBox4_32: Off
	CheckBox4_33: Off
	CheckBox5: Yes


